



CGA Committee Agenda

June 7th, 2023

8:30am

Greg Hogan, Councilmember, Chair

Melodi Koenig, Councilmember

Kim Agfalvi, City Clerk

Scott Larson, City Administrator

Gretchen Russo, Finance Director

Danielle Charchenko, Executive Assistant/Records Clerk

This meeting is being held in person and through the platform zoom. A link for virtual participation can be found on the agenda or on the City's website.

Zoom link: <https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86179891388?pwd=cFkzU3JDTFFKbFNLOQVBVZmdzZytOdz09>

Meeting ID: 861 7989 1388

Password: 406235

1. Call to Order

2. Parks Report

3. Public Comments

4. Agenda Items

A. Banners and Advertising.

B. Commercial Right of Way Use Permits.

C. AB23-52 – Purchasing Policy.

D. AB23-53 – Sign Code Amendments.

5. Meeting Minutes of May 3rd, 2023.

6. Action Items/Round table review.

Final comments.

Identify Items that are ready to move forward, establish next meeting's agenda.

7. Adjournment

Memo



To: CGA Committee

From: Scott Larson, City Administrator

cc: Mayor Penner

Date: May 24, 2023

Re: Banners and Advertisements on Public Property

The City has an existing practice of allowing banners to be placed over HWY 162 between Cardinal Ln. and Bridge Street. Typically, these banners are associated with a City event like the Daffodil Festival or City Sponsored event like the Farmers Market. In other instances, we have allowed this forum to be utilized for other non-government speech such as promoting a school bond or advertising a local football league. For these non-governmental speech instances, the city charges approximately \$200 for placing the banner for a two-week period.

In 2022 there was a Supreme Court case, *Shurtleff v. Boston*, where the City of Boston had a practice of allowing private groups to raise a flag on the city's flagpole. When a group wanted to raise a religious flag, the City denied the request as the city feared allowing a religious symbol was the city endorsing a particular religious position. The court however, unanimously ruled that if the city allows the flagpole to be used for any non-governmental speech it can't differentiate types of non-governmental speech. The court further stated that if Boston wants to change its policy and only utilize the flagpole for government speech, that would be permissible.

This memo serves primarily to inform the council of the current policy so that council can make an informed policy decision to either allow all non-governmental speech "banners" over the highway, or only allow government speech to be placed in this forum.

Further, the city has had a request from a business regarding "sponsoring" the baseball field. This would involve in individual, business, or organization paying a fee to place an advertisement (likely some sort of banner) on the fence at the City's baseball field. The intent of this funding would be to help fund field maintenance. Again, the same public forum analysis as outlined above would apply. If council would like to entertain a policy regarding placing banners in other forums like baseball fields, or other locations; staff can work on putting together a policy that would regulate how this would happen.



Memo

To: CGA Committee

From: Scott Larson, City Administrator

cc: Kim Agfalvi, City Clerk

Date: June 1, 2023

Re: Commercial Right-of-Way Use Permits

There is a desire to explore commercial use of the city's right-of-way (RoW), specifically sidewalks for café seating, displays of goods, and other commercial advertising. This memorandum will serve as a first draft of a policy for regulating commercial use of the RoW.

Accessibility

The biggest concern to allowing commercial activities within the city's RoW is blocking access pedestrians utilizing sidewalks, and providing enough space for pedestrians with mobility devices. Commercial activities on sidewalks less than 7 feet should be prohibited. A travel lane at least 4 feet wide shall be maintained at all times. If this is not able to be accomplished, activities on certain sections of sidewalks can be prohibited.

If multiple commercial users are located on a similar stretch of sidewalk, the users will have to work together to make sure there is space for pedestrians to pass at least every 50 feet. The passing area must be at least 15 feet long (running parallel to the RoW) and be a minimum of 6 feet wide.

Zoning

Commercial use of the RoW is only permitted within the Mixed-Use Town Center zone of Orting, specifically the sidewalks contained within and directly adjacent to the following boundaries: Starting with Whitsell on the north and Bridge on the south, Varner on the east and Corrin on the west.

Business with frontage

Businesses directly adjacent to the sidewalk may utilize sidewalk directly abutting the business for their commercial purpose by obtaining a Commercial RoW use permit at no cost.

Non-adjacent business users

Other businesses who wish to utilize the RoW for commercial purposes but do not have frontage directly adjacent to the sidewalks outlined in the zoning will need to obtain a use permit identifying the location they will be, and will have to obtain written permission from all property owners and/or businesses with 50 feet of their proposed location.

Café seating

There are two types of furniture allowed to be placed within the RoW, restricted furniture and public furniture. Businesses are required to secure or remove the furniture from the RoW at their close of business. If the furniture is restricted, the business must obtain a permit for a fee. If the furniture is open to the public, the business will have to obtain a no-cost annual permit.

RoW Adjacent to City Parks/Trails

Commercial activity adjacent to and within city parks continues to be regulated by Orting Municipal Code 8-6-3 and will remain otherwise prohibited.

Fees

The proposed fee, where specified, to obtain a Commercial RoW Use permit will be \$20 for a 30 day period or \$150 for a year.

Next Steps

Staff will update or Create the following policies:

- Commercial RoW Use Policy/Application based on this memorandum and feedback from the committee;
- Ordinance providing for Commercial RoW Use permit and fees for certain activities;
- Update fee schedule to include Commercial RoW use permit.



**City Of Orting
Council Agenda Summary Sheet**

	Agenda Bill #	Recommending Committee	Study Session Dates	Regular Meeting Dates
Subject: Purchasing Policy	AB23-52	CGA		6.14.2023
	Department:	Finance		
	Date Submitted:	5.30.2023		
	Cost of Item:	₪		
Amount Budgeted:	₪			
Unexpended Balance:	₪			
Bars #:	NA			
Timeline:				
Submitted By:	Gretchen Russo			
Fiscal Note:				
Attachments: Amended Purchasing Policy and Resolution No. 2023-11				
SUMMARY STATEMENT:				
<p>The current purchasing policy is contained within the council rules and is limited in scope and authorities. The amended purchasing policy clarifies purchasing guidelines to include the use of interlocal agreement purchases.</p> <p>A new standalone purchasing policy was desired to have a larger scope and more detail to effectively manage the day to day purchases that the city makes. The new purchasing policy pertains to the purchase of budgeted verses non-budgeted items, along with policy surrounding general purchases, public works, waivers, exemptions, credit card limits, and emergency purchases.</p>				
RECOMMENDED ACTION: <u>Action:</u>				
Move forward to regular business meeting on June 14 th , 2023 for discussion.				
FUTURE MOTION: <u>Motion:</u>				
To approve Resolution No. 2023-11 a resolution of the City of Orting, Washington, adopting amended purchasing policy; and establishing an effective date.				

CITY OF ORTING
WASHINGTON
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-11

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF ORTING,
WASHINGTON, ADOPTING AMENDED PURCHASING
POLICY; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, the City of Orting finds the adoption of written policies for purchasing and contracting are in the best interest of the City to provide sufficient guidance to the staff and provide a framework for future Council actions on decisions with financial consequence; and

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted a Purchasing Policy by motion at its regular meeting of June 14, 2023; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that an amendment to the Purchasing Policy to update purchasing policy to clarify the waiving of competitive bidding requirements by the terms of written policies as set out in RCW 39.04.280 and to increase purchasing thresholds to match current state laws.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ORTING, WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Adoption of Purchasing Policy, as Amended. The City of Orting hereby adopts the “Purchasing Policy” as attached hereto as Exhibit A, hereby incorporated in full by this reference.

Section 2. Severability. If any section, clause or phrase of this resolution should be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other section, sentence, clause or phrase of this resolution.

Section 3. Corrections Authorized. The City Clerk is authorized to make necessary corrections to this resolution, including but not limited to correction of clerical errors.

Section 4. Effective Date. The fee schedule adopted by this resolution shall be effective upon its passage. Any act consistent with the authority and prior to the effective date of this resolution is hereby ratified and affirmed.

RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF
ON THE 14th DAY OF JUNE 2023.

CITY OF ORTING

Joshua Penner, Mayor

ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:

Kim Agfalvi, City Clerk

Approved as to form:

Charlotte A. Archer
Inslee, Best, Doezie & Ryder, P.S.
City Attorney

City of Orting Purchasing Policy

Part I: Purpose

By adopting these procedures, the City Council intends to ensure that the city conduct all purchasing and public works contracting activities in full compliance with Washington law and locally adopted procedures. The intent of this chapter is to provide maximum assurances to the public and to all contractors, consultants and vendors, that Orting's purchasing and contracting practices provide maximum fairness and value in the expenditure of public funds. See appendix A for federal purchasing rules.

These procedures are adopted to:

- Implement the requirements of state laws, local ordinances and administrative procedures thereby assuring the legality of the purchasing process;
- Ensure buying competitively and wisely to obtain maximum value for the public dollars spent.
- Commit that procurement will be impartial and provide the City with the best quality for the best value; and
- Ensure that purchases will be within budget limits and meet goals and objectives approved in the City's Operating and Capital budget.
- Non-budgeted items or items that exceed budget capacity must be pre-approved by ~~city council~~ City Council.

Part II Code of Ethics

Code of Ethics (RCW 42.23) "Public employment is a public trust." The public must have confidence in the integrity of its government. The purpose of this Code of Ethics is to give guidance to all employees and elected officials so that they may conduct themselves in a manner which will be compatible with the best interest of themselves and the City of ~~Poulsbo~~ Orting. It is essential that those doing business with the City observe the following guiding ethical standards:

1. Actions of City employees shall be impartial and fair.
2. The City will not accept donations of materials or services in return for a commitment to continue to initiate a purchasing relationship.
3. City employees may not solicit, accept, or agree to accept any gratuity for themselves, their families or others that would or could result in personal gain. Purchasing decisions must be made impartially. The following are examples of items not considered gratuities: Discounts or concessions realistically available to the general population; Items received that do not result in personal gain; Samples to the City used for general City use.

Part III Conflict of Interest

No City staff or council member may undertake consulting, professional practice or other assignments which would result in a conflict of interest. Any employee of the City who recommends or approves a purchase and who has any financial interest in the firm involved in the purchase shall disclose his or her interest in the firm prior to recommending or approving the purchase.

Part IV _ Definitions

Unless the context requires otherwise, the terms as used in this Policy shall have the following meaning:

“Adequate appropriation balance” means sufficient fund balance existing in the appropriation item against which the purchase order is to be charged.

“Bid” means an offer, submitted by a bidder to furnish supplies, materials, equipment and other property in conformity with the specifications, delivery terms and conditions, and other requirements included in the invitation for bids or otherwise required by the city.

“Bidding” means a procedure used to solicit quotations on price and delivery from various prospective suppliers of supplies, materials, equipment, and other city property.

“Capital equipment” means any equipment of the city having an initial value of \$1,000 or more and an estimated useful life of three or more years.

“City administrator” means the City of Orting City Administrator or his/her duly appointed designee. The City Administrator is authorized to delegate any functions and responsibilities set forth in this chapter to administrative staff.

“Contractual services” means professional and nonprofessional service contracts including but not limited to engineering, animal control, janitorial and other contracts entered into for the accomplishments of a particular project or limited period of time.

“Cooperative agreements” are purchasing agreements between two or more organizations that aggregate demand and lower costs from select suppliers for the purpose of obtaining supplies or services faster, easier, or at a lower cost.

“Department Heads” means the Mayor, City Administrator, City Treasurer, City Clerk, Police Chief, Court Administrator, Building Official, Public Works Director, and the Parks and Recreation Director.

“Emergency” means, for the purpose of enabling the city to suspend compliance with public bidding and purchasing policies and requirements, an event or set of circumstances which demands immediate action to preserve public health, protect life, protect public property, or to provide relief to the community overtaken by such occurrences.

“Interlocal agreements” are the exercise of governmental powers in a joint cooperative agreement. An interlocal agreement does not mean a “Mutual Aid Agreement” as defined by the provisions of Chapter 10.93 RCW – The Washington Mutual Aid Peace Officers Powers Act.

“Life cycle cost” means the total cost of an item to the city over its estimated useful life, including cost of selection, acquisition, operation, maintenance, and where applicable, disposal, as far as these costs can reasonably be determined, minus the salvage value at the end of its estimated useful life.

“Local bidder” means a firm or individual who regularly maintains a place of business and transacts business in, or maintains an inventory of merchandise for sale in, and is licensed by the city of Orting.

“Mutual law enforcement assistance agreement” includes, but is not limited to, one or more law enforcement agencies aiding or assisting one or more other such agencies through loans or exchanges of personnel or of material resources, for law enforcement purposes.

“Phone bids” means a non-written quotation for a product, or service as outlined in Part VII.

“Public property” means any item of real or personal property owned by the city.

“Public work” shall have the meaning set forth in RCW 39.04.010, as now adopted and hereafter amended.

“Purchase order” means an official document used in authorizing the encumbrance of city funds toward the purchase of supplies, materials, equipment and other property.

“Purchasing agent” means the City Administrator or city employee designated by the City Administrator to serve as a purchasing agent. For routine departmental purchases of supplies, in accordance with the City Administrator’s administrative policy, each department director may designate one or more departmental purchasing agent(s).

“Request for Proposal” (RFP) is a method of soliciting competitive bid proposals for a defined scope of work. The proposals would normally include factors to measure qualifications, delivery, and service reputation as well as price. Stated another way, an RFP is a formal invitation from the city to a company to submit an offer. The offer is to provide a solution (or proposal) to a problem or need the city has identified. An RFP is a solicitation process whereby the judgment of the supplier’s experience, qualifications, and solution may take precedence over their cost proposal to the City. The elements of an RFP are:

1. Project Background and Scope of Service
2. Definitions
3. Minimum Qualifications
4. Technical Requirements (if any)
5. Schedule
6. Cost Proposal
7. Submittal Requirements
8. Evaluation Process and Criteria
9. Insurance Requirements
10. Funding Sources (if applicable)

“Request for Qualifications” (RFQ) is a method of soliciting competitive proposals that considers and evaluates companies on the basis of demonstrated competency and qualifications rather than price. This process is typically used for architecture and engineering services where price is not a consideration. An RFQ will generally result in negotiations. The elements of an RFQ are:

1. Project Background and Scope of Services
2. Project Budget and Source of Funding
3. Schedule
4. Minimum Qualifications
5. Submittal Requirements
6. Selection Process/Evaluation Criteria

“Requisition” means a standard form providing detailed information as to quantity, description, estimated price, possible vendors, fund account, signature and other information necessary to make purchasing decisions.

“Responsible bidder” means a bidder who has proven by experience or information furnished to the satisfaction of the City Administrator that current financial resources, production or service facilities, service reputation and experience are adequate to make satisfactory delivery of supplies of acceptable quality, equipment, or contractual services on which he/she bids. A “responsible bidder” has not violated or attempted to violate any provisions of this chapter.

“Responsive bidder” means a bidder who has complied with all requirements contained in the invitation to bid, including the bid packet and specifications, and who has submitted all required documentation, information and bid bond by the deadline for acceptance of bids.

Guidelines for

~~Part V:~~ Purchases, Public Works and Services

The processes listed in the following guidelines are the normal competitive bidding purchasing requirements. Possible exemptions from normal competitive requirements may include the following: interlocal agreements, emergency, sole source, special facilities or market conditions, purchase of insurance or bonds, auction and electronic data processing or telecommunications purchase.

An interlocal agreement may be used for purchasing in lieu of formal bids or for purchases that do not require a formal process. Initial interlocal agreements of any amount with another governmental agency require Council authorization. The City Administrator may execute renewal or extension of existing interlocal agreements fees up to \$50,000 (fifty thousand), if the agreement’s address renewal and the agreement is consistent with the adopted budget. All other renewals require Council approval. Many of the interlocal agreements are continuing agreements (no end date) and will remain in effect until the City believes that it is no longer needed.

Part V: Section 1. ~~Purchase~~ Purchases of supplies, equipment, and materials (unconnected with a Public Works Project)

Items under this category include furniture, computer hardware, office equipment, and operating and maintenance supplies.

Purchases by the city of supplies, equipment, and materials shall be made as provided herein; provided nothing herein shall be construed to prohibit City participation in cooperative purchasing agreements with other municipalities. Department heads are encouraged to obtain on-call and long-term service contracts for up to three years for services that are regularly used.

Section ~~21~~. Purchases of \$7,500 -or less

Supplies, materials, and equipment with a reasonably expected cost of \$7,500- or less may be purchased without formal or informal bidding; provided that City staff will strive to obtain the lowest practical price for such goods or services.

Section ~~32~~. Purchases between \$7,500 -and \$15,000

Supplies, materials, and equipment with a reasonably expected cost of between \$7,500 and \$15,000 may be purchased without formal bidding but staff are required to get at least three soft “phone bids” before moving forward with the purchase using a vendor list.

Vendor List process

1. The City partners with the Municipal Research Service Center (MRSC) that forms vendor lists for the award of contracts for the purchases of materials, equipment and supplies.
- ~~2.~~
- ~~3.~~2. The department director or their designee shall secure written quotations from at least three different vendors whenever possible. The purchase contracts shall be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder.
- ~~4.~~3. Immediately after the award of the purchase contract is made, the bid quotations obtained shall be recorded and open to public inspection and shall be available by telephone inquiry. When awarded, the department director or their designee shall notify the city clerk.
- ~~5.~~4. The city clerk shall post at city hall a list of the contracts awarded using the MRSC at least once a year. The list shall contain the names of vendors awarded contracts, the amount of the contracts, a brief description of the items purchased under the contracts, the dates that the contracts were awarded, and the location where the bid quotations for the contracts are available for public inspection.

Section ~~53~~. Purchases over \$15,000

~~Supplies, material, equipment, or services with a reasonably expected to cost more than \$15,000.00 shall be purchased through a formal call for bids as follows:~~

1. Staff will prepare bid specifications for the goods or services to be purchased, which shall include an invitation to bid notice, instructions to bidders, general conditions, special bid conditions (if any), terms and conditions, and a bid proposal form indicating the type of response desired from a bidder.
2. A call for sealed bids (“Call for Bid”) or request for proposals will be published in a newspaper of general circulation throughout the city not less than one week prior to the date fixed for opening.
3. The Call for Bid or request for proposals will be posted in the same manner as ordinances. The notice shall include a description of the goods or services desired.
4. Bid proposals will be opened on the date and time, and at the place as specified in the specifications or public notices.
5. Staff will prepare tabulation sheets based on the criteria laid out in the Call for Bid and either recommend an award to the lowest responsible bidder, who meets the terms of the specifications, conditions and qualifications or recommend the rejection of any or all bids.
6. The ~~city council~~ City Council shall review the bid proposals, related materials and the recommendation of the staff, and shall award the contract to the lowest responsible bidder. The city administrator may upon review of the materials and recommendations of staff reject any or all bids and make a further call for bids.
7. If bids are not received on the first call, the city may choose either to make ~~a~~ second call for bids or to negotiate directly with any prospective service or supply provider, per RCW 35.23.352(1).

Part VI Public Works (as defined in RCW 39.04.010)

In determining the cost of a public works project, all amounts paid for materials, supplies, equipment, and labor, as well as retail sales and use tax (where required by law) on the construction of that project must be included.

Section 1. Public Works – Minimal Competition ~~-\$75,000-~~ or less

1. The city may construct public works by contract, without calling for bids, whenever the estimated cost of the work or improvement, including cost of materials, supplies and equipment will not exceed the sum of: (1) \$75,000. The term "public works project" means a complete project. Division of the project into units of work or classes of work to avoid the restriction on work that may be performed by day labor on a single project is not permitted.
2. A contract shall be awarded under this section according to the following procedure:
 - A. Competitive bidding is not required and staff may seek quotes directly from individual vendors. Staff are encouraged but not required to seek multiple quotes.

Section 2. Public Works – Small works roster, \$350,000 ~~-or less~~

1. The city contracts with MRSC for maintenance of a small works roster, consisting of all responsible, licensed contractors requesting to be included for award of public works contracts not to exceed \$350,000-.
2. The city may award a contract for \$350,000 ~~-or less~~ off of the small works roster using the following procedure:
 - A. The ~~director of public services~~Public Works Director or designee shall obtain written quotations, from the small works roster. Whenever possible, the city shall invite at least five contractors to submit quotations, including, whenever possible, at least one otherwise qualified woman or minority contractor. The city may invite all appropriate contractors on the roster to submit quotations. Once a contractor has been afforded an opportunity to submit a quotation, that contractor shall not be offered another opportunity until all other appropriate contractors on the roster have been afforded an opportunity to submit a quotation on a contract.
 - B. The city's invitation for quotations shall include an estimate of the scope and nature of the work to be performed, and the materials and equipment to be ~~famished~~furnished.
 - C. The city shall award the contract to the lowest responsible bidder.
 - D. Immediately after awarding a contract, the ~~director of public services~~Public Works Director shall record the bid quotations obtained for the contract. The bid quotations shall be open to public inspection.

Section 3. Public Works – Formal bidding, \$350,000 ~~-or more~~

Public works with a reasonably expected cost of \$350,000- or more shall be let by formal bid as provided herein:

1. Formal bidding procedure:

- A. Staff will prepare bid specifications for completion of the public works project upon prior authorization by the ~~city council~~ **City Council**.
- B. A call for sealed bids (“Call for Bids”) will be published in the official newspaper, or a newspaper of general circulation most likely to bring responsive bids, once a week for two consecutive weeks prior to the date fixed for the opening of bids.
- C. The Call for Bids will be posted in the same manner as ordinances.
- D. The Call for Bids shall contain the following:
 1. Description of the nature of work;
 2. State where the plans and specifications are on file;
 3. State that the bids must be sealed and filed with the city before a specific date;
 4. State what criteria will be used to score the bids
2. State that bids must be accompanied by bid proposal deposit which will be at least five percent of the bid in the form of a cashier's check or postal money order or surety bond made out to the city and specify that no bids will be considered without this deposit. Bids will be opened on the date and time and at the place as specified in the bid specifications, requests for proposals, advertisements and public notices.
3. Staff will prepare bid tabulation sheets based on the criteria laid out in the Call for Bids, and either recommend an award to the lowest responsible bidder who meets the terms of the specifications, conditions and qualifications, or recommend the rejection of all bids received.
4. The City Council shall review the bids, specifications and related materials and the recommendations of staff and shall award the contract to the lowest responsible bidder.
5. The city administrator council may, upon review of the materials and recommendations of staff, reject all bids if it is determined that a bidder is non-responsive or not-responsible, and may make a further call for bids.
6. If bids are not received on the first call, the city may choose either to make a second call for bids or to negotiate directly with any prospective public works contractor.

Part VII Service Contracts

Contracts for services that are not for: (1) public works or (2) a qualifying professional service set out in RCW 39.80.020, do not require a competitive bidding process, per state law. However, the city would like to utilize a competitive process to ensure that taxpayer dollars are being put to their highest and best use. To that end, this city will follow the following processes:

1. For service contracts estimated to be less than \$50,000 ~~-no~~ competitive process is required but staff should be able to show that the price is reasonable and the provider is qualified.
2. For service contracts estimated to be more than \$50,000 ~~-but less than \$75,000-~~ staff should obtain three written quotes from qualified providers, or alternatively they may use a more formal RFP/RFQ process as described herein.

For service contracts estimated to be more than \$75,000 staff should use a formally advertised RFP/RFQ process as described herein.

Part VIII Architect and Engineer Services (A&E)

The City must follow chapter 39.80 RCW for procuring A&E professional services, as defined at RCW 39.80.020. Architectural and Engineering consultants are initially selected based upon their qualifications through a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) process, rather than price (see RCW 39.80.050). After selecting a consultant of this type via the RFQ process, the city will negotiate a contract with the most qualified firm at a price which the City determines fair and reasonable. In so negotiating, the city shall take into account the estimated value of the services to be rendered as well as the scope, complexity, and professional nature. If the city is unable to negotiate a satisfactory contract with the firm selected at a price the city determines to be fair and reasonable, negotiations shall be terminated and the city shall begin negotiations with the next highly qualified firm.

Part IX Waivers and Exemptions

Section 1 Emergency Purchases

It is the intent as adopted by the City Council of Orting that the Mayor, or his designee, be authorized to waive the requirements of competitive bidding in the event of an emergency as defined by RCW 39.04.280. An emergency purchase means unforeseen circumstances beyond the control of the city that either: (a) present a real, immediate threat to the proper performance of essential functions; or (b) will likely result in material loss or damage to property, bodily injury, or loss of life if immediate action is not taken. The Mayor or his designee shall comply with all portions of RCW 39.04.280 in the event of an emergency. The City Council through resolution may also waive competitive bidding requirements in circumstances defined within RCW 39.04.280. In any waiver of competitive bidding requirements, public disclosure and review shall be produced per the requirements as defined in RCW 39.04.280.

Section 2 Sole Source Supply

These requirements for purchasing or public works also may be waived by the Mayor, or his ~~designed~~ designee declaring that the purchase or public work is either clearly and legitimately limited to a single source or supply, or the materials, supplies, equipment, or services are subject to special market conditions, and recites why this situation exists. The City Council through resolution may also waive competitive bidding requirements in circumstances defined within RCW 39.04.280. In any waiver of competitive bidding requirements, public disclosure and review shall be produced per the requirements as defined in RCW 39.04.280.

Part ~~VIX~~ Purchasing Authority

Purchasing authority as described below is based on a complete contract price. Contracts that last multiple years shall have each years' cost aggregated to determine the entire contract value. Purchasing authority is also project-limited. If the project requires purchases from multiple vendors, costs from each vendor shall be aggregated to determine how a purchase is approved.

Section 1. Authorities for Budgeted Items:

Purchase of supplies, equipment, materials or goods not connected with a public works project

1. Purchases ~~of less than \$15,000 or less~~ may be approved by ~~Department Directors~~ department directors
2. Purchases ~~above \$15,001 are required to~~ less than \$70,000 may be approved by the City Administrator
- 2.3. Purchases above \$70,000 require Council approval.

Public Works projects

1. Purchases ~~of \$350 less than \$15,000 or less~~ may be approved by the Public Works Director
2. Purchases ~~above \$350,001 or more are required to~~ less than \$75,000 may be approved by the City Administrator
- 2.3. Purchases above \$75,000 require Council approval.

Section 2. Authorities for non-Budgeted Items:

1. ~~Purchases of \$1 less than \$15,000 or less may be approved by Department Directors~~
- 2.1. ~~Purchases between \$1,001 and \$2,500~~ may be approved by the City Administrator
3. ~~Purchases between \$2,501 and \$10 more than \$15,000 may be approved by the Mayor~~
- 4.2. ~~Purchases above \$10,001 are required to be approved by the City~~ require Council approval

Section 3. ~~Emergency Authority~~

~~This section applies only when the mayor has declared an emergency and must comply with part 4.1 above.~~

1. ~~The Incident commander and the mayor, their designee or successor as defined by the Continuity of Operations plan, in the event of a declared emergency are authorized to spend or commit any needed resources to preserve life and property.~~

Part ~~XXI~~ Credit Cards

The City shall provide the Mayor and department heads (or their designees, as approved by the Finance Committee) with a ~~City~~ city credit card for traveling or purchasing budgeted items. It is the policy of the City that purchases on credit cards be minimized as much as possible. It is the responsibility of each card holder to save their receipts and provide them to the accounts payable clerk. The ~~finance director~~ Finance Director may require a reconciliation from the card holder if they have more than ten transactions per month.

Section 1. Credit Limits

The following limits shall apply:

1. The Mayor, the City Administrator, and the ~~City Treasurer~~Finance Director shall have full access to the city's credit limit.
2. The Police Chief shall have a limit of \$15,000.
3. The Public Works Director shall have a limit of \$~~5~~15,000.
4. All other directors shall have a limit of \$~~1,500~~5,000.
5. The Public Works Administrative Assistant shall have a limit of \$~~3~~7,000.
6. All others who have credit cards shall have limits of \$~~500~~1,000.
7. In the case of a declared emergency, the Incident commander and all city directors shall have full access to the credit limit of the ~~City~~city.

APPENDIX A — FEDERAL FUNDS

If needed, the Finance Director or designee may increase the credit card limit for a limited time period or for a specific purchase.

Part XII Federal Funds

Federal funds and grants often come with their own separate and more restrictive bidding requirements. Competitive bidding may be required by federal agencies, even below the state limits, and the required competitive process may be more demanding.

If the project uses any federal funding, the most restrictive of the state and federal requirements must be used. The city will work closely with granting agencies and follow all the requirements for the particular grant.

Equipment and Supplies

<u>Type of Purchase</u>	<u>Normal Process</u>	<u>Other Requirements</u>	<u>Contract Authorization</u>
<u>Items costing less than \$7,500</u>	<u>No state law required</u>		<ul style="list-style-type: none"> • <u>Department director may execute</u>
<u>Items between \$7,500 and \$15,000</u>	<u>May use any of the following:</u> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> • <u>3 quotes from MRSC vendor list</u> • <u>Formal bid</u> • <u>Interlocal Agreement or other possible exemptions</u> 	<u>Publication of RFP if bidding</u>	<u>Budgeted Purchases</u> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> • <u>Department director may execute</u> <u>Non-budgeted purchases</u> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> • <u>City Administrator may execute</u>
<u>Purchases over \$15,000</u>	<u>May use any of the following:</u> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> • <u>Formal Bid</u> • <u>Interlocal agreement or other possible exemptions</u> 	<u>Publication of RFP if bidding</u>	<u>Budgeted Purchases</u> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> • <u>Purchases up to \$70K City Administrator may execute</u> • <u>Purchases above \$70K are required to be approved by the Council</u> <u>Non-budgeted</u> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> • <u>Requires Council approval</u>

Professional and personal services

<u>Type of Service</u>	<u>Normal Process</u>	<u>Other Requirements</u>	<u>Contract Authorization</u>
<u>Architectural, Land Surveying and Engineering Services</u>	<u>Request for Qualifications</u>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> • <u>Publish RFQ</u> • <u>Must evaluate on performance and qualifications</u> • <u>Negotiate contract after selection</u> 	<u>Budgeted Purchases</u> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> • <u>If under \$70K, City Administrator may execute</u> • <u>Above \$70K requires Council approval</u> <u>Non-budgeted purchases</u> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> • <u>Purchases are required to be approved by the Council</u>
<u>All other personal services</u>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> • <u>No state law required process</u> • <u>Contracts more than \$50K but less than \$75K should obtain three written quotes or a formal bid</u> • <u>Contracts more than \$75K should use a formal bid</u> • <u>Interlocal agreement or other possible exemption</u> 		<u>Budgeted</u> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> • <u>If under \$15K, department director may execute</u> • <u>If under \$70K, City Administrator may execute</u> <u>Non-budgeted</u> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> • <u>Under \$15K, City Administrator may execute</u> • <u>Above \$15K requires Council approval</u>

Public Works

<u>Purchase or Project</u>	<u>Normal Process</u>	<u>Other Requirements</u>	<u>Contract Authorization</u>
<u>Projects less than \$2.5K</u>	<u>One quote needed, two recommended</u>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> • <u>Prevailing wage</u> • <u>No bond</u> • <u>No retainage</u> 	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> • <u>Department director may execute</u>
<u>Projects costing under \$50K (Alternative to Small Works Roster)</u>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> • <u>Solicited quotes</u> • <u>Interlocal agreement or other possible exemptions</u> 	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> • <u>Prevailing wage</u> • <u>Insurance</u> • <u>Contract/Performance bond required between \$10K to \$40K</u> 	<u>Budgeted Projects</u> <u>Department director may execute</u> <u>Non-budgeted Projects</u> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> • <u>Under \$15K City Administrator may execute</u> • <u>Above \$15K requires Council approval</u>
<u>Projects costing under \$75K</u>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> • <u>May use Small Works Roster from MRSC</u> • <u>Interlocal agreement or other possible exemptions</u> 	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> • <u>Prevailing wage</u> • <u>Insurance</u> • <u>Contract/Performance bond</u> • <u>Bid bond/deposit (unless using Small Works Roster)</u> 	<u>Budgeted Purchases</u> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> • <u>Up to \$15K Department director may execute</u> • <u>Under \$75K City Administrator may execute</u> <u>Non-budgeted purchases</u> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> • <u>Under \$15K City Administrator may execute</u> • <u>Above \$15K requires Council approval</u>
<u>Projects costs exceeding \$75K for single trade or \$116,155 for multiple trades and less than \$350K</u>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> • <u>Formal Bid or Small Works Roster process to solicit quotes</u> • <u>Interlocal agreement or other possible exemptions</u> 	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> • <u>Prevailing wage</u> • <u>Insurance</u> • <u>Contract/Performance bond required</u> 	<u>Budgeted Projects</u> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> • <u>Requires Council approval</u> <u>Non-budgeted Projects</u> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> • <u>Requires Council approval</u>
<u>Projects costing 350K or more</u>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> • <u>Formal Bid</u> • <u>Interlocal agreement or other possible exemptions</u> 	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> • <u>Prevailing wage</u> • <u>Insurance</u> • <u>Contract/Performance bond</u> • <u>Bid bond/deposit</u> 	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> • <u>Requires Council approval</u>

Possible exemptions from normal competitive bidding requirements include the following:

- emergency purchase, sole source purchase, special facilities or market conditions, purchase of insurance or bonds, auction, electronic data processing or telecommunications purchase



**City of Orting
Council Agenda Summary Sheet**

	Agenda Bill #	Recommending Committee	Study Session Dates	Regular Meeting Dates
Subject: Sign Code Amendments	AB23-53			
			1.18.2023	1.25.2023 6.14.2023
	Department:	Planning		
	Date Submitted:	1.11.2023 6.1.2023		
Cost of Item:	NA			
Amount Budgeted:	NA			
Unexpended Balance:	NA			
Bars #:				
Timeline:				
Submitted By:	Scott Larson			
Fiscal Note:				
Attachments: Staff Report, Ordinance, Planning Commission Draft Amendment				
SUMMARY STATEMENT:				
<p>Earlier this year council updated the sign code. One of the changes that was recommended by planning commission was updating the sign area of mixed-use centers such as the Safeway complex, under Orting Municipal Code (OMC) 13-7-9(B). The recommendation from planning commission was to increase maximum sign area in those locations to 40 square feet, up from the current 30 square feet. When staff were preparing the ordinance, the update to this section were inadvertently omitted, but were briefed to council as part of the recommendation. This Ordinance would add the OMC 13-7-9(B) amendments to the code to increase the sign size limit for these specific retail areas.</p>				
RECOMMENDED ACTION: <u>Action:</u>				
Move forward to regular business meeting on June 14 th , 2023 as a consent agenda item.				
FUTURE MOTION: <u>Motion:</u>				
To approve Ordinance No. 2023-1103, an ordinance of the City of Orting, Washington, relating to signs; amending Orting Municipal Code 13-7-9(B); providing for severability; and establishing an effective date.				

**CITY OF ORTING
WASHINGTON
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-1106**

**AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ORTING,
WASHINGTON, RELATING TO SIGNS; AMENDING
ORTING MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 13-7-9;
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND ESTABLISHING
AN EFFECTIVE DATE**

WHEREAS, the City of Orting is a non-charter optional municipal code city as provided in Title 35A RCW, incorporated under the laws of the state of Washington; and

WHEREAS, by Ordinance No. 2023-1103, the City recently updated its regulations for signs to create a cohesive aesthetic for signs in the City, provide opportunity for adequate identification and advertising, and to create consistency and predictability in the sign code; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the requirement set forth in RCW 36.70A.106, on November 8, 2022, the City provided the Washington State Department of Commerce notice of the City's intent to adopt the proposed ordinance, inclusive of proposed amendments to Orting Municipal Code (OMC) 13-7-9 (B), for its review and comment period; and

WHEREAS, the City's Planning Commission held a public hearing on the proposed amendments on December 5, 2022 and proposed a recommendation and forwarded it to the City Council to adopt the proposed OMC amendments; and

WHEREAS, upon adoption, staff noted that the Ordinance, as adopted, omitted proposed amendments to OMC 13-7-9 (B), which were reviewed by the Planning Commission and recommended for adoption; and

WHEREAS, in response thereto, staff prepared this amending Ordinance to add the proposed amendments to OMC 13-7-9 inadvertently omitted from Ordinance No. 2023-1103; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the proposed regulations are in accord with the Comprehensive Plan, will not adversely affect the public health, safety, or general welfare, and are in the best interest of the citizens of the City;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ORTING, WASHINGTON, DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Recitals. The Recitals set forth above are hereby adopted and incorporated as Findings of Fact and/or Conclusion of Law of the City Council. The City Council bases its findings and conclusions on the entire record of testimony and exhibits, including all written and oral testimony before the Planning Commission and the City Council.

Section 2. OMC Section 13-7-9, Amended. Orting Municipal Code Section 13-7-9 is hereby amended in part as follows:

B. Retail Or Mixed Use Centers:

1. One freestanding ~~monument~~ sign shall be permitted for each street frontage of each center, subject to architectural design review and permitting under sections 13-6-7 and 13-7-11 of this code. The maximum sign area permitted is one hundred sixty (160) square feet for the total of all faces, and no one face shall exceed eighty (80) square feet. The maximum height of a ~~monument~~ freestanding sign shall be eight feet (8').

2. A maximum of ~~thirty~~ forty (340) square feet of wall sign area shall be permitted for each individual establishment in a center, subject to architectural design review and permitting under sections 13-6-7 and 13-7-11 of this code.

C. Other Permitted Permanent Signs:

1. Permanent Residential Development Signs: One sign at each entrance into the development from each abutting street is permitted, subject to architectural design review and permitting under sections 13-6-7 and 13-7-11 of this code. The sign may be a single sign with two (2) faces of equal size or may be two (2) single faced structures of equal size located on each side of the entrance. Sign faces shall not exceed thirty-two (32) square feet in area. Signs may be externally illuminated.

a. Development signs shall be maintained perpetually by the developer, the owner of the sign, the homeowners' association, or some other entity who is authorized in accordance with the permit.

2. Permanent Residential Home Based Business Signs: Home based businesses may display a limit of one sign. The sign shall be no more than six (6) square feet in size and requires a city permit. The sign will not require Architectural Design Review. The sign can be placed on the home or in the yard. If the sign is placed in the yard it must be at least one (1) foot away from sidewalks and/or the property line. The sign cannot be more than 3' high from the ground. No lighting allowed of any type. In neighborhoods with Home Owners Association Covenants and Restrictions, home based business signs may not be allowed.

D. Projected And Under Canopy Permanent Signs: Projected and under canopy signs are subject to architectural design review and permitting under sections 13-6-7 and 13-7-11 of this code. A projected sign or under canopy sign may encroach within, upon or over the public right of way, including any public sidewalk, provided that, such sign meets the requirements of this Chapter, the proposed sign is designed and constructed so as not to interfere with the sight distance of, or otherwise present a hazard to, motorists proceeding on or approaching on adjacent streets, alleys, driveways, or parking areas, or of pedestrians proceeding on or approaching on adjacent sidewalks or pedestrian ways, and the sign meets the provisions of section 13-7-8 of this code.

Section 3. Severability. Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance, or its application to any person or circumstance, be declared unconstitutional or otherwise invalid for any reason, or should any portion of this Ordinance be pre-empted by state or

federal law or regulation, such decision or pre-emption shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance or its application to other persons or circumstances.

Section 4. Codification. The City Council authorizes the City Clerk to correct any non-substantive errors herein, codify the above, and publish the amended code.

Section 5. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be published in the official newspaper of the City and shall take effect and be in full force five (5) days after the date of publication.

ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF ON THE 14th DAY OF JUNE, 2023.

CITY OF ORTING

Joshua Penner, Mayor

ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:

Kimberly Agfalvi, City Clerk

Approved as to form:

Charlotte A. Archer
Inslee, Best, Doezie & Ryder, P.S.
City Attorney

Filed with the City Clerk:
Passed by the City Council:
Date of Publication:
Effective Date: